CAPEL PARISH COUNCIL

Minutes of a Planning Committee Meeting held on Monday 25 March 2024 at Capel Village Hall, Falmouth Place, Five Oak Green TN12 6RD at 19:00hrs

Present: Cllrs. Saunders, (Chair), Fenton, Mackonochie, Malpas and Patterson In attendance: Louise Goldsmith, Clerk, 2 members of the public

Minute No		
	1.	ADMINISTRATION: Fire Exits, Assembly Point, Mobile Phones. No requests received to record the meeting.
329.	2.	APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE: None received.
330.	3.	DECLARATION OF INTERESTS: None received.
331.	4.	APPROVAL OF MINUTES The minutes of the meeting held on the 26 February 2024 were signed as a true and accurate record.
332.	5.	OPEN SESSION No comments made.
333.	6.	NEW PLANNING APPLICATIONS Planning applications to be decided by CPC
		 a. 24/00408/FULL: Tatlingbury Oast, Five Oak Green Road, Five Oak Green Change of use from general office space (Class E) to function rooms (Sui Generis). Recommend: No objection.
		b. 24/00441/FULL: Holmewood Farm, Badsell Road, Five Oak Green Change of use of grazing land to caravan storage and erection of stone/soil bund. Recommend: Objection. We echo the concerns of the Environmental Agency and KCC Highways. We are concerned about the discharge of effluents into the water system. We consider the height of the bund insufficient to obscure the view of the motor homes.
		c. 24/00555/FULL: Tricklebrook Fishery, Colts Hill, Five Oak Green Erection of baliffs dwelling and change of use of existing baliffs lodge to short-term holiday let. Recommend: Objection. We are concerned about the additional traffic movements on this busy stretch of road particularly as it would bring people unfamiliar with the road into the area. We also feel this is an overdevelopment of the site. The fishery business and holiday homes seem to have conflated.
		 d. 24/00690/REM: Land East of Kingstanding Way, Royal Tunbridge Wells Approval of Reserved Matters (access, appearance, landscaping, layout, scale) including details for Condition 2; Condition 6; Condition 39; Condition 41 pursuant to 22/02789/FULL for the Amendment to approved application 19/02267/OUT (Alteration to conditions 2 and 3) to allow redistribution of B1 and B8 uses. Recommend: No comment.
		e. 24/00684/REM: Land East of Kingstanding Way, Royal Tunbridge Wells Approval of Reserved Matters (access, appearance, landscaping, layout, scale) including details for Condition 2; Condition 6; Condition 39; Condition 41 pursuant to 23/03103/FULL for Variation of Conditions 3 and 4 of 22/02789/FULL – to allow the redistribution of B1 and B8 uses. Recommend: No comment.
		f. 24/00734/FULL: 2 St Nortons Cottages, Five Oak Green Road, Five Oak Green Erection of garden building. Recommend: No comment.

	ļ	g. 24/00487/FULL: The Hay Barn, Stone Castle Farm, Whetsted Road, Five Oak Green
		Installation of 27 roof-mounted solar panels.
		Recommend: No objection.
334.	7.	OUTSTANDING APPLICATIONS AWAITING TWBC RESPONSE
	ć	a. 23/03025/FULL: Colt Cottage, Postern Lane, Tonbridge Removal of existing dwelling and barn. Erection of replacement dwelling; with associated parking,
		turning, landscaping, private amenity space and access.
		Recommend: No objection. We would like a condition set that no further residential building
		works take place within the existing curtilage.
		b. 23/03499/FULL: Hunters Lodge, Badsell Road, Five Oak Green
		Erection of dwelling following removal of existing caravan and outbuildings, hard and soft
		landscaping.
		Recommend: No objection.
		c. 24//00179/FULL: Land to the north of the Oast Barn, Whetsted Road, Five Oak Green
		Proposed new barn, repositioned access, track and associated works.
		Recommend: Approval.
		d. 24/00315/FULL: Tudeley Brook Stables, Crittenden Road, Matfield
		Conversion and partial demolition of stable to dwelling house.
		Recommend: No objection subject to execution of the Environmental Agency Conditions.
		We would like to highlight that our emerging Neighbourhood Plan does not allow building in Flood Zone 3.
		e. 24/00428/FULL: Sholden, Five Oak Green Road, Five Oak Green
		Demolition of existing dwelling and construction of replacement dwelling. Recommend: No objection. Please note that the existing dwelling has already been
		demolished, this should be a part retrospective application.
		f. 24/00262/FULL: Orchard Brook, Five Oak Green Road, Five Oak Green
		Variation of Condition 2 of planning permission 23/02130/FULL – External walls changed to dark
		stained timber cladding, roof tiles changed to concrete, reduction in building width, alterations to
		fenestration.
		Recommend: No objection.
		g. 23/00118/HYBRID: Land West Of Queen Street, Paddock Wood
		Full Application for erection of 170 homes and Waste Water Treatment Works together with
		temporary construction/haul road off Queen Street to enable the delivery of the Waste Water Treatment Works and up to 150 dwellings, Outline Application (appearance, landscaping, layout
		and scale reserved) for the erection of up to 430 additional homes, inclusive of associated
		infrastructure including land for a new primary school, play areas, allotments, network of new roads
		(and widening of existing roads), surface water drainage features, car and cycle parking and open pace and associated works. Recommend: Object.
		pace and associated works. Recommend. Object.
	ł	23/00086/HYBRID: Land West Of Queen Street And Mile Oak Road, Paddock Wood
		Full Application for erection of 160 homes. Outline Application (appearance, landscaping, layout
		and scale reserved) for the erection of up to 400 additional homes, inclusive of associated infrastructure including land for specialist accommodation for the elderly, land for secondary school
		expansion, a local centre, play areas, network of new roads (and widening of existing roads),
		surface water drainage features, car and cycle parking and open space and associated works.
		Recommend: Object.
		i. 23/00091/HYBRID: Land West Of Queen Street, Paddock Wood
		Construction of bus, pedestrian and cycle link between land at Church Farm and Land West Of
		Queen Street, together with associated works. Recommend: Object.
		j. 22/03563/FULL: Reeds Solar Farm, Alders Road, Capel Revised details. Construction and operation of a solar photovoltaic (PV) farm and battery storage
		facility with all associated works, equipment and necessary infrastructure.

	 Recommend: Refusal. We do not feel that our previous concerns, listed below, nor those of the statutory consultees have been addressed. We agree with the conclusions of the Landscape and Biodiversity Officer. We also echo the comments from the CPRE. The boundary of the High Weald Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty runs along Alders Road. The proposed Solar farm is in the High Weald National Character Area and forms part of the setting of the AONB. We would like to reminder TWBC that Alders Lane is designated as a historic routeway and that the proposed alterations to provide the necessary visibility splay for the access to the site would have a seriously detrimental effect on the character of the area. <i>Previous Comments</i>: Recommend Refusal. We note that most of the professional statutory consultees object/have concerns about to the proposal and have asked for additional information. We share their concerns and in particular in relation to the following: 1. Highway safety - Alders Road is a rural lane which is completely inappropriate for the construction traffic needed. The entrance to the site with a large dip in the ground adjoining a sharp bend in the road will present a danger to construction traffic and other users. Please note the junction with the A228 Colts Hill is dangerous and has a record of accidents. The Parish Council could not see how this could be mitigated. 2. The site is adjoining and visible from the AONB - there seems to be no assessment of the impact of the site development on the AONB. 3. Although there are assessments of the impact of the development on the isterd buildings adjoining the site there is no assessment of the singet of this area which is created taken as a whole. There is no mention of the heritage of this area which is Category 2 or 3 best and most versatile land which would seems and as a record is Category 2 or 3 best and most versatile land which would seems on the set development is therefore understated. 4. The site
005	burden this will place on the community.
335.	8. TUNBRIDGE WELLS BOROUGH COUNCIL DECISIONS. Outstanding planning applications decided by TWBC shall appear once decided. Recommendation by CPC is in BOLD. *TWBC Planning Decision is in Italics
	a. 24/00033/FULL: Orchard View, Half Moon Lane, Tudeley Erection of detached garage. Recommend: No objection. *Permitted.
	 b. 23/03311/FULL: Capel Cottage Garden Nursery, Maidstone Road, Whetsted Demolition of existing building and change of use of the land for the stationing of a mobile home for residential purposes in association with the existing garden nursery business. Recommend: Approval as long as the proposed mobile home is ancillary to the business. *Permitted.

	 c. 23/02787/FULL: Kings Head, Badsell Road, Five Oak Green Demolition of the former Kings Head pub and redevelopment of the site to form three new residential dwellings with associated parking, amenity and revised vehicular access. Revised plans. Recommend: Neutral. We recommend that consideration is given to the following points and that we have an opportunity to see these addressed before the application is determined. Firstly, we would like consideration to be given to the proposed fencing and receive confirmation that this will not be a barrier to flood water. We echo KCC Highways comments about pedestrian signage. We continue to have concerns about the sight lines and would welcome the suggested additional signage given this development is sited on a dangerous bend. Design features should be in line with the emerging Capel Neighbourhood Plan and the Design Codes. We would encourage the use of solar or ground source heating. If the Officer is mindful to approve this proposal we would ask that we are given 3 days notice. *Permitted. d. 24/00032/FULL: Dislingbury Farmhouse, Half Moon Lane, Tudeley Erection of detached garage and store. Recommend: No objection. *Permitted. e. 24/00066/FULL: Badsell Orchard, Badsell Road, Five Oak Green Erection of car barn in association with ref: 23/02215/FULL. Recommend: No objection. *Permitted.
336.	9. OTHER MATTERS:
	 a. FS-Case-547362832 Deldean Yard, Five Oak Green Road, Five Oak Green: Enforcement has advised that the Agent is still in the process of getting an updated acoustic report. b. Capel Court Yard, Alders Road: Alleged breach of planning conditions: There was no update from Enforcement regarding the fact the owners of the yard are in breach of a Section 52 Order.
	 c. Top Lodge, Pembury Road, Capel: It was noted that the appeal lodged against Enforcement Notice T018570: 'without planning permission the construction of a gymnasium outbuilding within the curtilage of a listed building.' (ref: 21/03419/FULL) has not yet been determined
337.	10. DATE OF NEXT MEETING: Monday 29 April 2024 at 19:00hrs

With no further business to discuss the meeting closed at 19:30hrs

Signed:

Dated: